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From: GinA <peacivist@peacivist.org>

To: 'dgfuller@sidneymaine.org'
Date: 7/7/2015 8:43:59 PM

Subject: 2528 West River Road
Attachments: richard_ritenour_letter_of conclusion.pdf

Hi Gary.

Attached is a report written by the individual | hired to inspect the property which | believe should be included in the town’s
public records for this property.

GinA

2528 West River Road
Sidney

11/26/2016


mailto:peacivist@peacivist.org
mailto:gfuller@sidneymaine.org

July 5, 2015

RE: 2528 West River Road, Sidney Maine

To Whom It May Concern:

I, Richard Ritenour, am writing this Letter of Conclusion after being requested by
GinA to inspect the property at 2528 West River Road, Sidney Maine. ‘

I have over 30 years’ experience in construction work including 7 years laying
foundations; therefore, I have knowledge and experience to accurately assess a foundation.

GinA brought to my attention other known issues which I have observed at 2528
West River Road Sidney Maine. Those issues are as follows:

1. Electrical

No GFI outlets in kitchen or bathroom

a.
b. No hard-wired smoke detectors
c. 1 battery operated smoke detector in entire house
d. Inadequate number of outlets, overload often triggering breaker
~e. Several broken outlets
f. Wiring hanging loosely in second floor and basement
2. Heating
a. Unusable wood stove in basement
b. Not enough clearance from combustible materials
c. Unsafe to put any type of furnace in basement until foundation is repaired
d. No central heating system installed in house
3. Plumbing
a. Septic tank is too close to the house. Should be 100 feet away from building.
b. Improper sizing of plumbing piping which affects water pressure
c. Improper plumbing materials used throughout house
d. Toilet needs to be replaced due to age and inner bowl deterioration
e. No sewer exhaust pipe leading to sewage backups

4, Structural

a.

Numerous areas in exterior house walls where daylight can be seen and
where cold air can penetrate due to lack of chinking or missing caulking

b. Floor upheaval from living room to bathroom from foundation movement

C.

First floor leans toward center of house due to rotting support posts/beams

5. Foundation (Outside Visual Ouverview)

a.
b.

No site drainage or routing of surface water runoff away from house

Holes and separations in foundation clearly visible (which were hidden from
view by use of tarps and hay bales which had to be removed for assessment)
Clearly worn pathways of rain runoff directly entering damaged foundation
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d. Minor tilt to foundation walls on all four sides
e. Major separation at outside stairway basement entrance bulkhead of at least
eight inches (8”) from top to bottom

6. Foundation (Inside Visual Overview)
a. Clear view to outside from basement in multiple areas of foundation wall
b. East wall has six (6) five inch by twelve inch (5” x 12”) openings that have
only a fiberglass insulation barrier between the basement and outside
c. A three foot by four foot (3’ x 4') unfinished repair at southwest corner wall
d. The south wall has a major break at the juncture of the outside concrete
cellar stairs bulkhead and the foundation.

i. I believe this is the severest issue with this foundation because the
concrete bulkhead is collapsing inwards on both sides but only one side
has completely separated from the foundation. Further collapse is
imminent and can occur at any time causing a serious hazard, including
death, for any tenants living in the house. The next collapse may cause a
domino effect causing the rest of the foundation to collapse which may
cause the house to slide off the foundation due to weakening and rotting
of the support posts. If either event occurs, which is highly probable, it
will cause a devastating and potential total loss of the building unless
immediate repairs are completed.

In my professional opinion, the foundation is a non-functioning hazard whereas its
walls are struggling to support the load they were originally designed for and the wooden
support posts are no longer trustworthy due to several years of moisture damage.

7.. Other

Obvious damage to wooden support posts due to being submerged in water
Black mold due to high moisture levels

Undrinkable water requiring a full house water filtration system or new well
Malfunctioning water heater from mineral buildup causing high electric bills
All windows need to be replaced with double or triple-pane glass

Windows need to be installed in second floor rooms

House i1s inadequately insulated '

Substandard lighting throughout house interior and exterior

Hornet infestation in southern roof pitch

Front (barn) door needs to be replaced or repaired

No hand rails on cellar stairs

Improperly built exterior stairs with improper or no handrails

HRET R S O RO T

Ultimately, the house at 2528 West River Road, Sidney Maine is sitting on an
unsafe and crippled foundation and should not be occupied.

Richard Ritenour
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Open attached file
richard_ritenour_letter_of_conclusion.pdf


